

SAFEGUARDING & CHILD PROTECTION POLICY

Whole School Policy, including EYFS & Boarding

This Policy was adopted on 2nd September 2019 Next Review (except in the case of relevant legislation): 2nd September 2020

Designated Safeguarding Lead (DSL) Whole School & EYFS: Catherine Openshaw, Headmistress of the Pre-Preparatory School

Deputy Designated Safeguarding Leads (DDSLs): Senior School: Father Stephen Padfield, Whole School Chaplain Preparatory School: Mrs Sarah Walsh, Form Teacher Pre-Preparatory School (inc. EYFS): Mrs Kellie Crozer, Deputy Headmistress

Safeguarding Nominated Governor: Mrs Anne Rouse, retired Principal & School Governor, Chair of Education & Pastoral Committee

This policy will be reviewed annually by the Governing Body, unless an incident or new legislation or guidance suggests the need for an earlier update.

This policy has been authorised by the Board of Governors, is addressed to all members of staff and volunteers, is available to parents on request and is published on the School website. It applies wherever staff or volunteers are working with pupils even where this is away from the School, for example at an activity centre or on an educational visit.

Based upon the Medway LSCB Model Policy Sept_2018

CONTENTS

Information	Page No.
Key Contact Information	3
Section 1: Introduction	4
Section 2: Aims	6
Section 3: Safe School, Safe Staff: Management of Safeguarding	7
Responsibilities of Governing Body	7
Responsibilities of All staff	9
Section 4: The Designated Safeguarding Lead (DSL) and Deputy Designated Safeguarding Leads (DDSLs)	12
Section 5: Training	13
All Staff	13
Induction	13
DSL/DDSLs	14
Section 6: Supporting Children: Procedures	14
Early Help	15
Procedures for Concerns about a Pupil's Welfare & Children in Need	15, 16
If a child is in immediate danger	16
Children who may be particularly vulnerable & Children with SEND	16, 17
FGM	18
Disclosures	18
Allegations against Staff	19
Whistle Blowing	19
Allegations against Pupils: Peer on Peer Abuse, Upskirting & Serious Crime	19, 20
Prevention of Harm	21
Use of Mobile Phones/Personal Devices Taking, Storing and Using Images of Pupils	21, 22
The Use of Reasonable Force	23
Confidentiality, Record Keeping and Sharing of Information	23
Working with Parents/Carers	24
Health and Safety	24
Section 7: Supporting Staff	25
Safer Recruitment	26
Section 8: Monitoring and Evaluation	26
Appendices	
Appendix 1: Key Contact Information	27
Appendix 2: The Role of the DSL/DDSLs	28
Appendix 3: What is Abuse?	32
Appendix 4: Recognising Signs of Abuse	34
Appendix 5: Specific Safeguarding Concerns including:	37
Children Missing Education and Missing Children CSE, CCE	38 40, 41
Anti-bullying	41
HBV including FGM and Forced Marriage Preventing Radicalisation	42 43
Sexual Violence and Sexual Harassment between Children & Upskirting	45,46
Sexting Appendix 6: Guidance for Staff on Receiving a Disclosure	46 48
Appendix 7: Procedure for Managing Concerns	49
Appendix 8: Allegations against Staff: Procedure	50
II	57

KEY CONTACT INFORMATION

Name	Title	Telephone	Email contact
Mrs Catherine Openshaw	Designated Safeguarding Lead & Headmistress of the Pre-Preparatory School	01634 888560	copenshaw@kings-rochester.co.uk
Father Stephen Padfield	Deputy Designated Safeguarding Lead & Whole School Chaplain	01634 888555	spadfield@kings-rochester.co.uk
Mrs Sarah Walsh (Preparatory School 8-13 years)	Deputy Designated Safeguarding Lead & Class Teacher in the Preparatory School	01634 888577	swalsh@kings-rochester.co.uk
Mrs Kellie Crozer (Pre-Preparatory School 3-8 years)	Deputy Designated Safeguarding Lead, Deputy Headmistress in the Pre- Preparatory School	01634 888566	kcrozer@kings-rochester.co.uk
Mr Ben Charles	Principal	01634 888551	principal@kings-rochester.co.uk
Mrs Anne Rouse	Child Protection & Safeguarding Link Governor & retired Principal/ Chair of Education Committee	01634 819573	arouse@kings-rochester.co.uk
Ms Jacqueline Shicluna	Chair of Governors	01634 888555	jshicluna@kings-rochester.co.uk
	Medway LADO	01634 331 307 01634 336 204 01634 331 695	LADO Admin: 01634 331 065
Medway Safeguarding Children Partnership (MSCP) CADS (Children's Advice and Duty Service)		01634 334466 Or out of hours: 03000 419191	
Kent Safeguarding Children Partnership (KSCP)		03000 411111 Or out of hours: 03000 419191	
Early Help		Medway: 01634 338746	Medway: <u>ehsupport@medway.gov.uk</u>
NSPCC		Kent: 03000 419222 0800 028 0285 (M-F 8am-8pm)	Kent: <u>earlyhelp@kent.gov.uk</u> help@nspcc.org.uk
Childline		0800 1111	
Counter extremism/ Prevent Duty	Advice line for staff/ Governors 020 7340 7264	101 or 999 in an emergency	Counter-extremism@education.gsi.gov.uk
Child Exploitation & Online Protection Centre		101 for advice or 999 in an emergency	https://www.ceop.police.uk/safety-centre/
Reporting FGM	Police	101 or 999	
UK Safer Internet Centre		0344 381 4772	helpline@saferinternet.org.uk
Police (ask to speak to Combined Safeguarding Team)		101 for advice or 999 in an emergency	

Any concerns of a safeguarding nature should be reported as soon as possible, ideally using the locally approved form provided in Appendix 8, which can be handed/sent to the DSL or one of her Deputies. Further advice can be sought from the DSL about reporting mechanisms and read within this policy. Key contacts for King's Rochester are provided on this page of this policy and in Appendix 1. However, it should be noted that a concern can be registered directly with the Local Safeguarding Children Board without the need to liaise with the DSL, and in an emergency or if a crime is believed to have been committed, direct contact with the Police can be made by telephoning 999.

Section 1: INTRODUCTION

King's Rochester is committed to safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children and young people and will always consider the best interests of the child. Children, young people and parents have a right to expect the School to provide a safe and secure environment. Everyone deserves respect and to be valued in an atmosphere of openness and support, where staff and pupils feel able to raise concerns and know that they will be listened to. The staff at King's are alert to the signs of abuse and neglect, and follow procedures set out in this policy, to ensure that all within our community receive effective and appropriate support, protection and justice.

This policy has been developed in accordance with the principles established by the Children Act 1989 and 2004; the Education (Independent School Standards) (England) Regulations 2014, and in line with the following government publications.

- "Working Together to Safeguard Children" 2018
- Statutory Guidance for School and Colleges "Keeping Children Safe in Education" September 2019
- Revised Safeguarding Statutory Guidance 2 "Framework for the Assessment of Children in Need and their Families" 2000
- "What to do if You are Worried a Child is Being Abused" 2015
- Disqualification Under Childcare Act (2016)
- Prevent Duty Guidance for England and Wales (2015)
- Prevent Duty: Departmental Advice for Schools and Childminding (2015)
- Use of Social Media for Online Radicalisation (2015)
- Multi-agency statutory guidance on FGM (2016)
- UKCCIS guidance Sexting in schools and colleges (2016)
- Children missing in education (2016)
- Child sexual exploitation: definition and a guide for practitioners, local leaders and decision makers working to protect children from child sexual exploitation (2017)
- Sexual violence and sexual harassment between children in schools and colleges (2018)
- Information Sharing (2018)
- Medway Safeguarding Children Partnership (MSCP) Safeguarding Children Procedures
- Kent Safeguarding Children Partnership (from 17th September 2019)

This School takes seriously its responsibility under section 175 of the Education Act 2002 to safeguard and promote the welfare of children. The School is also committed to working together with other agencies to ensure adequate arrangements are in place within our School to identify, assess, and support those children who are suffering harm.

We recognise that safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children is everyone's responsibility, including temporary staff¹, volunteers and governors. All have a full and active role to play, as part of the wider safeguarding system for children, in protecting our pupils from harm. The child is at the centre of all we do and child welfare is our paramount concern. Feedback from staff regarding deficiencies or weaknesses in procedures will be attended to at once.

King's Rochester consists of one School comprised of three Schools; a Pre-Preparatory School (3 to 8 years) which includes Early Years pupils (in Nursery & Reception classes), a Preparatory School (8 to 13 years) and a Senior School (13 to 18 years), collectively referred to in this policy as 'the School' unless otherwise stated. In addition, a boarders' community of young people aged 11 years+ are resident in school and living away from home. The School seeks to afford them the particular care and protection their status requires.

This policy covers the whole School including the EYFS. Designated Safeguarding Lead with responsibility for the Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS): Mrs Catherine Openshaw (Headmistress of the Pre-Preparatory School) Deputy Designated Safeguarding Lead with responsibility for the Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS): Mrs Kellie Crozer (Deputy Headmistress of the Pre-Preparatory School)

The School also educates all of the boy Cathedral Choristers, and some girl Cathedral choristers are also pupils of the School. School staff supervise and care for choristers whilst they are at School and when School staff are escorting them to and from the Cathedral. The Cathedral takes responsibility for the Cathedral Choristers whilst they are in the care of Cathedral staff, whether in the Cathedral on duty or being escorted to and from the Cathedral (or School). The Cathedral also takes responsibility for the choristers whilst they are away from Rochester singing locally or abroad on tour. The Cathedral has adopted the Diocesan Child Protection Policy which can be found at <u>www.rochestercathedral.org</u> and both organisations have approved the document 'Procedure for the Joint Safeguarding of the Choristers' which is reviewed annually by the Director or Music in the Cathedral and the Headmaster of the Preparatory School.

Of course, any safeguarding concerns about choristers can be referred to either School or Cathedral or directly to the Local Safeguarding Children Partnership (NB: referrals are made to the safeguarding service where the child LIVES, therefore, this is likely to be Kent or Medway).

King's Rochester Sports Centre

Any staff or pupils of King's Rochester who are at the Sports Centre must still follow the School's Safeguarding and Child Protection Policy and Procedures as laid out in this Policy. Members of the public are asked to report any safeguarding concerns to the Manager of the Sports Centre who has a full and relevant qualification.

¹ Wherever the word "staff" is used, it covers ALL staff on site, including ancillary supply and self employed staff, contractors, volunteers working with children etc, and governors

Section 2: AIMS

All staff are committed to providing a caring, positive, safe and stimulating environment that promotes the social, physical and moral development of the individual child.

Staff are aware that abuse can be a complex issue and rarely is there a single event that can be summarised in one label. Staff are aware that somebody may abuse or neglect a child by inflicting harm or by failing to act to prevent harm. Children may be abused in a family or in an institutional or community setting, by those known to them or, more rarely, by others. They may be abused by an adult or adults or another child or children. The School will always act in the best interest of the child.

The aims of this policy are:

- To provide all staff, including the Designated Safeguarding Lead (hereafter referred to only as DSL) and Deputy Designated Safeguarding Leads (hereafter referred to only as DDSLs), the Principal, volunteers and Governors with the necessary information to enable them to meet their statutory responsibilities to promote and safeguard the wellbeing of children;
- To ensure consistent good practice across the School; and
- To demonstrate the School's commitment with regard to safeguarding children.

The 'good practice' outcomes of this policy within the School are:

- To support the child's development in ways that will foster security, confidence, resilience and independence;
- To provide an environment in which children and young people feel safe, secure, valued and respected, feel confident, and know how to approach adults if they are in difficulties, and know that they will be effectively listened to by everyone;
- To provide specific 'listening' opportunities via Form Time with form tutors, school counsellor sessions, circle time and 'listening sessions' and provide children with the language and skills needed to keep themselves safe and get themselves heard;
- Maintain an attitude of 'it could happen here' with regard to child protection;
- Maintain a culture of sharing even small pieces of information that may build into a bigger picture surrounding a child or family;
- To raise the awareness of all teaching and non-teaching staff of the need to safeguard children and of their responsibilities in identifying and reporting possible cases of abuse, whether by an adult or another pupil;
- To provide a systematic means of monitoring all children for signs of change in behaviours/demeanour and especially those known, or thought to be at risk of harm;
- To ensure we, the School, contribute to assessments of need and support packages for children, including Early Help Intervention;
- To support vulnerable pupils and protect all against maltreatment and exploitation;
- To emphasise the need for good levels of communication between all members of staff;

- To develop and promote effective working relationships with other agencies, especially the Police and Social Care and foster a multi-agency approach to safeguarding; and
- To ensure that all staff working within our School, who have substantial access to children, have been checked as to their suitability, including verification of their identity, qualifications, a satisfactory DBS check and where necessary a barred-list check (according to guidance)², and that a single central record is kept for audit purposes.

Section 3: safe school, safe staff: management of safeguarding

Governing Body

It is the Governing Body's overall responsibility to ensure compliance with child protection statutory requirements.

The Governing Body takes seriously its responsibility to uphold the aims of the charity and its duty of care in promoting the welfare of children, ensuring their security and protecting them from harm. The reporting of safeguarding practice at the School enables the Governing Body to ensure compliance with current legislation and to identify areas for improvement. The Governing Body recognises that close liaison with the local authorities is also vital in order that appropriate support and training can be given.

All members of the Governing Body understand and fulfil their responsibilities and will ensure that:

- they have undertaken the School's required Safeguarding Training (either in-house or online) and are equipped with sufficient knowledge to fulfil their function;
- there is an effective and statutorily compliant Child Protection and Safeguarding Policy and Procedures in place and a staff Code of Conduct, both provided to all staff on induction;
- the School's safeguarding arrangements take into account the procedures and practice of the local authority as part of the inter-agency safeguarding procedures;
- appropriate action is taken, in a timely manner, to safeguard and promote children's welfare;
- the School contributes to inter-agency working in line with statutory guidance, Working Together to Safeguard Children (July 2018), through effective implementation of the Child Protection and Safeguarding Policy and Procedures and good co-operation with local agencies;
- the School operates safer recruitment procedures that include the requirement for at least one member of a recruitment panel to have undertaken safer recruitment training and for appropriate checks to be made in line with national guidance (see part 3 of KCSIE 2019);

² Guidance regarding DBS checks recently updated by the Protection of Freedoms Act 2012 and statutory guidance on "Keeping Children Safe in Education"

- the School has statutorily compliant policies and procedures for dealing with allegations of abuse against members of staff, including allegations made against the DSL or Principal, (see Part 4, KCSIE 2019 and <u>Appendix 8</u> 'Allegations against Staff: Procedure' of this document);
- a senior leader is the DSL with lead responsibility for child protection within the School, and that they have the appropriate authority, time, funding, training, resources and support to fulfil the role and responsibilities;
- the DSL and DDSLs undertake training, and training updates, at least every 2 years in line with statutory guidance and that the role is written into their job description;
- all other staff have received effective Safeguarding training at least every 3 years and receive, at least annual updates to provide them with relevant skills and knowledge to safeguard children effectively in line with national and Local Safeguarding Children Partnership guidance;
- where necessary, an appropriately trained and informed teacher is appointed to promote the educational achievement of any child who is 'looked after';
- appropriate safeguarding responses are in place to deal with pupils who go missing from the School during the school day (see School's Missing Child policy);
- Appropriate safeguarding responses are in place for children who repeatedly do not attend school and safeguarding concerns need to be raised (Children Missing Education);
- any weaknesses in Child Protection arrangements are remedied immediately;
- ensure that any serious incident that has resulted, or could result, in a significant loss of funds or a significant risk to the School's property, work, pupils (beneficiaries) or reputation is reported to the Charity Commission immediately, including any suspicions, allegations or incidents of abuse or mistreatment of vulnerable beneficiaries. In particular, if:
 - there has been an incident where the pupils have been or are being abused or mistreated while under the care of the School or by someone connected with the School such as a Governor, member of staff or volunteer;
 - there has been an incident where someone has been abused or mistreated and this is connected with the activities of the School;
 - allegations have been made that such an incident may have happened, regardless of when the alleged abuse or mistreatment took place there are grounds to suspect that such an incident may have occurred.

See more at: <u>https://www.gov.uk/complain-about-charity</u>

• child protection and safeguarding policies and procedures are reviewed annually by the nominated Safeguarding Governor and then the full Governing Body. Those with safeguarding experience may contribute to writing the policy and procedures (ie: DSL/DDSLs).

The nominated Child Protection and Safeguarding Link Governor is Mrs Anne Rouse. Her responsibilities include to:

- have oversight of child protection matters including policy and procedures;
- liaise with the DSL regarding issues on child protection;
- review of this policy and school procedures annually; and
- discuss the annual safeguarding audit with the DSL prior to its presentation for the full Governing Body.

<u>All Staff</u>

All members of School staff and volunteers (which includes, the Principal, all Governors, teaching and support staff):

- are provided with child protection awareness information at induction, included in their arrival pack. They will be provided with training and the School's safeguarding policy so that they are aware of the School's DSL and DDSLs as well as School's systems, policies and procedures for reporting concerns;
- have signed an agreement that they have read and understood Keeping Children Safe in Education September 2019 (Part One) and Annex A where appropriate;
- are provided with a small card summarising key points and offering reminder prompts for following procedures in School;
- have child protection awareness training, updated by the DSL or another approved provider every 3 years, to maintain their understanding of the signs and indicators of abuse;
- are trained in, and receive regular updates in, Early Help, online safety, reporting concerns, and annual updates in the School's safeguarding procedures in line with current legislation;
- are aware of their own responsibility in reporting concerns or disclosures to the DSL (or DDSL), but also, if there is risk of immediate harm to a child, directly to the appropriate Children's Advice and Duty Service;
- know how to respond to a pupil who discloses abuse through delivery of the whole School training (see <u>Appendix 6</u> 'Guidance for Staff on Receiving a Disclosure' and Appendix 7 'Managing a Concern');
- are aware of the definitions, signs and symptoms of physical, sexual, emotional abuse and neglect so that they are able to identify children who may be in need of extra help or who are suffering, or likely to suffer, significant harm and in such circumstances take appropriate action (see <u>Appendix 3</u> 'What is Abuse?' and <u>Appendix 4</u> 'Recognising Signs of Abuse');
- are aware of wider, changing, specific safeguarding concerns including (but not exclusively) CSE, honour based violence including Female Genital Mutilation (FGM), radicalisation, online abuse, peer on peer abuse including Upskirting, and child engaging in risk taking behaviour (see <u>Appendix 5</u> 'Specific Safeguarding Concerns');
- will ensure the suitability of adults working with children on school sites at all times;

- ensure that child protection concerns or allegations against adults working in the School, including the DSL, are referred to the Principal who will then contact the LADO³ for advice. Any member of staff who has harmed a child or who may pose a risk of harm to a child will be notified to the Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS)⁴. This is for consideration for barring, following resignation, dismissal, or when we cease to use their service as a result of a substantiated allegation or if they resign during an investigation and there is a concern they may pose a risk of harm to children; and
- consider how pupils may be taught about safeguarding, including online, through teaching and learning opportunities. This is part of providing a broad and balanced curriculum and pastoral care covering relevant issues through Relationship Education or Relationship and Sex Education and PSHEE.

KCSIE defines safeguarding and promoting the welfare of children as protecting children from maltreatment; preventing impairment of children's health or development; ensuring that children grow up in circumstances consistent with the provision of safe and effective care; and taking action to enable all children to have the best outcomes. Children includes everyone under the age of 18.

Safeguarding is not just about protecting children from deliberate harm, neglect and failure to act. It includes a wide range of issues relating to pupil's welfare, health and safety.

We are aware that child protection and safeguarding are fundamental to the welfare of all children in our care. This Policy, therefore, should be read in conjunction with other policies which are designed to promote the safeguarding of children.

The following policies are therefore relevant to the School's safeguarding practices:

- Staff Code of Conduct;
- Staff Acceptable Use and Social Media Policy;
- Whistleblowing Policy;
- Safer Recruitment Policy;
- Behaviour Policy;
- Anti-bullying Policy;
- Online Safety Policy;
- Supervision and Missing Child Policy;
- Complaints Policy;
- Health and Safety Policy; and
- Data Protection Policy.

These are all available on the School intranet in the <u>Whole School Policies and</u> <u>Procedures</u> folder.

³ LADO Local Authority Designated Officer for allegations against staff

⁴ Contact the LADO for guidance in any case. Failure to notify DBS service in appropriate circumstances is a criminal offence.

Also relevant are Government documents:

KCSIE (2019) which includes Annex A from page 78: <u>https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file</u>/828312/Keeping_children_safe_in_education.pdf

KSCIE (2019) Part 1 only: <u>https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file</u>/828587/Keeping_children_safe_in_education_part_one.pdf

Working Together to Safeguard Children (2018): <u>https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file</u>/779401/Working Together to Safeguard-Children.pdf

What to do if You are Worried a Child is being Abused (2015): <u>https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file</u>/419604/What to do if you re worried a child is being abused.pdf

Boarding Community at King's Rochester

Statutory guidance 'Keeping Children Safe in Education' (2019), notes that children can be particularly vulnerable in residential settings, and that within a boarding community in any school such as King's Rochester, staff need to be alert to pupil relationships and the potential for peer abuse. Boarding staff or those involved in teaching/ supporting boarding pupils are expected to be vigilant with regard to this potential and report any concerns in line with local safeguarding procedures. Boarding Housemaster and Housemistress are trained as DDSLs for continuity of care for boarders outside of 'normal' school hours.

There are additional requirements for boarding schools set out in National Minimum Standards and regulations:

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/416186/2015031 9 nms_bs_standards.pdf

This includes any concern that a female boarding pupil may be about to be or has been exposed to female genital mutilation (FGM).

In addition, current safe practice guidance for safeguarding children when staying with host families either in the UK or abroad is carefully followed, when necessary.

The school acknowledges the need to provide alternative accommodation if a member of the boarding staff is suspended in circumstances of a child protection & safeguarding nature.

When possible abuse is suspected by one or more pupils against another pupil including the legal threshold, the School acknowledges the need to refer such abuse to an external safeguarding agency (see <u>Allegations against Pupils</u> – p.20).

This School accepts the principles of the 'BSA Commitment to Care Charter' (Boarding Schools Association, February 2016) and the importance of the care, wellbeing and

safeguarding of boarding pupils.

Charter Commitments:

- BSA schools are committed to the highest duty of care and safeguarding
- Everyone in a BSA school will raise any abuse concerns immediately
- BSA schools will follow all statutory safeguarding guidance and laws and report abuse to the relevant authority
- BSA schools will support any present pupils affected by abuse and those who report it
- BSA will support member schools which responsibly follow the Charter

Section 4: DSL and DDSLs

- The DSL, Mrs Catherine Openshaw, is a member of the Senior Management Team and will take lead responsibility for all safeguarding and child protection matters arising at the School and will work in accordance with KCSIE (2019).
- The DSL and her Deputies will support all other staff in dealing with any child protection concerns that arise.
- The DSL is given the time, funding, training and resources, status and authority within the School in order to carry out these duties.
- The name and contact details of the DSL are set out in the Contacts list at the beginning of this document and again in <u>Appendix 1</u> ('Key Contact Information'). The main duties of the DSL (and her deputies) are set out clearly in <u>Appendix 2</u> ('The Role of the DSL/DDSLs'), details of the role have been added to her job description.
- The Deputies (DDSLs) are also teachers or academic staff. Their names and contact details are also set out in the Contacts list at the beginning of this document and again in <u>Appendix 1</u> ('Key Contact Information'), details of the role have been added to their job descriptions.
- The DDSLs have undertaken the same compulsory training as the DSL, delivered through the Medway Safeguarding Team, or by an approved external training provider, and will undertake other training as required, at least every 2 years. They have also all undertaken Prevent Awareness training.
- In the absence of the DSL, the functions of the DSL will be carried out by the DDSLs. They are also responsible for all safeguarding during term time school hours along with the DSL.
- At weekends and overnight during term time, the boarding housemaster/ housemistress will be responsible for advice amongst the boarding staff teams and emergency referrals associated with the boarders. All such advice/action must be recorded appropriately and passed to the DSL as early as possible following an incident. The boarding Housemaster/ Housemistress have completed the same training as the DSL and the DDSLs.

Throughout this policy, reference to the DSL includes the DDSLs where the DSL is unavailable.

Section 5: TRAINING

All staff have a legal duty to protect children from abuse and support them, always acting in the best interest of the child. It is therefore essential that everyone in School:

- is aware of the procedures within this Policy and follows them;
- knows how to implement the procedures in this Policy;
- understands how to record concerns and disclosures and keep sufficient records; and
- reports any matter of concern immediately in accordance with this Policy.

The School ensures that guidance and training is arranged on induction and regular updates at least annually, with comprehensive training every 3 years. This will ensure that all staff have the necessary knowledge and skills to carry out their role, and will include (though not exclusively):

- a copy of the School's current Child Protection and Safeguarding Policy;
- a copy of Part 1 of KCSIE (2019) and, where appropriate, Annex A;
- a requirement to sign to confirm that they have read and understood all of the above documents;
- an understanding of the types of abuse and possible indicators (see <u>Appendix 3</u> 'What is Abuse' and <u>Appendix 4</u> 'Recognising Signs of Abuse');
- knowledge of how to respond to concerns about a child or a disclosure from a child (see <u>Appendix 6</u> 'Guidance for Staff on Receiving a Disclosure' and Appendix 7 'Procedures for Managing Concerns');
- knowledge of how to manage a report of child-on-child sexual violence and sexual harassment (see Peer on Peer Abuse section p. 20);
- what to do in the case of concerns about a member of staff (see '<u>Allegations against</u> staff' p. 17 and <u>Appendix 8</u> for the School's 'Allegations Against Staff: Procedure' based on Part 4 KCSIE 2019);
- guidance, advice and support on assessing the risk of children being drawn into terrorism and who may be at risk of radicalisation;
- an overview of the local Early Help procedures and an understanding of their role in it; and
- an overview of current specific safeguarding concerns (see <u>Appendix 5</u> 'Specific Safeguarding Concerns').

Written records of all staff training in Child Protection and Safeguarding are kept.

Induction

All staff are provided with induction training. This will involve staff being provided with (though not exclusively):

- a copy of this Policy, KCSIE 2019 Part 1 and Annex A where relevant;
- an overview of the role of the DSL/DDSLs and their contact details;
- relevant Child Protection and Safeguarding training including, awareness of local Early Help procedures and the process for making referrals alongside understanding what to do if they are concerned about a child or a child makes a disclosure;
- a copy of the relevant School's handbook containing, the staff Code of Conduct;
- a copy of the Online Safety Policy and the Acceptable Use of ICT Policy containing the Social Media Policy;
- a signpost to the Whistleblowing Policy contained within the Employment Manual;
- a copy of the Behaviour Policy for the relevant School; and
- the School's safeguarding response to children who go missing from education and those who go missing during the school day.

The DSL/DDSL

The DSL/DDSLs undertake training to ensure that they have the knowledge and skills required to carry out their role. This includes Prevent awareness training and is updated at least every two years. In addition to this, they will have at least annual refresher training to keep up to date with current thinking and legislation. The DSL receives regular updates from the Local Safeguarding Children Partnership.

Section 6: SUPPORTING CHILDREN - PROCEDURES

- If a member of staff has a concern about a child, they should always consult the DSL or relevant DDSL. Options will then include:
 - Managing any support for the child internally via pastoral systems;
 - An early help assessment; or
 - Referral to Children's Services as the child might be in need, is in need, or suffering or likely to suffer harm.
- We must maintain an 'it could happen here' attitude at all times.
- Staff should always act in the best interest of the child and not assume that a colleague or other professional will take action and share information. Staff should, therefore, always take action themselves.

Early Help

Early help is the provision of support as soon as a problem emerges at any point in a child's life, from the foundation years through to the teenage years.

The School understands that providing early help is more effective in promoting the welfare of children than reacting later. Staff are aware that they are in a position to identify concerns early, provide help for children and prevent concerns from escalating.

The School's safeguarding training includes guidance about the local Early Help process and the part that staff play in it in identifying those children who may benefit. Any child may benefit from early help, yet staff should be particularly alert to potential need for help for a child who:

- is disabled and has specific additional needs;
- has educational needs (whether or not they have a statutory Education Health and Care plan);
- is a young carer;
- is showing signs of being drawn in to anti-social or criminal behaviour, including gang involvement and association with organised crime groups;
- is frequently missing/goes missing from care or home;
- is at risk of modern slavery, trafficking or exploitation;
- is at risk of being radicalised or exploited;
- is misusing drugs and alcohol;
- is in family circumstances presenting challenges for the child, such as substance abuse, adult mental health problems or domestic abuse;
- has returned home to their family from care; and
- is a privately fostered child.

Staff should refer to the DSL for a possible Early Help Assessment (EHA) when:

- age appropriate progress is not being made and the causes are unclear or development progress is being met;
- the support of more than one additional agency is needed to meet the child or young person's needs; and
- child/ren do not meet MSCP safeguarding threshold yet concerns are emerging e.g. attendance, behavioural, social or physical wellbeing academic progress.

The DSL will consider appropriate action in accordance with the Local Safeguarding Children Partnership threshold criteria, possibly initiating a consultation with them and then if early help is appropriate, the DSL will liaise or support the staff member in liaising with other agencies and setting up an inter-agency assessments as appropriate. If early help and/or other support is appropriate, the case will be kept under constant review and consideration given to a referral to children's social care if the child's situation doesn't appear to be improving.

Procedures for Concerns about a Pupil's Welfare

It is the duty of all staff to report a concern or disclosure to the DSL/DDSL as soon as possible. However, small the concern, it should be reported in order to build a picture, if necessary, of the child and their welfare.

If a member of staff has a concern about a pupil they will need to decide what action to take:

- firstly, initiate a conversation with the DSL, or DDSL in the appropriate part of the School;
- the DSL/DDSL will consider the appropriate action this may include a referral or other options such as a referral to specialist services or Early Help services and this will be made in accordance with the referral threshold set by the Local Safeguarding Children Partnership;
- if it is decided that a referral is not required, a team will be set up with a key contact – to monitor, support and review the situation. Consideration will particularly be given to subsequently making a referral if the pupil's situation does not seem to be improving.

Children in Need

A child in need is defined under the Children Act 1989 as a child who is unlikely to achieve or maintain a reasonable level of health or development, or whose health and development is likely to be significantly or further impaired, without the provision of services; or a child who is disabled. Local authorities are required to provide services for children in need for the purposes of safeguarding and promoting their welfare. Children in need may be assessed under section 17 of the Children Act 1989. Staff should be mindful of any pupils they consider to be children in need and report to the DSL/ relevant DDSL.

If a child is in immediate danger, or risk of harm... ie: Children suffering or likely to suffer harm

If a child is feared to be in immediate danger or is at risk of harm a referral should be made to children's social care and/or the police immediately. **Anyone can make a referral**. NB: Referrals are made to the safeguarding service where the child LIVES, therefore, this is likely to be Kent or Medway.

Local authorities have a duty to make enquiries under section 47 of the Children Act 1989 if they have reasonable cause to suspect that a child is suffering, or is likely to suffer, significant harm. Such enquiries enable them to decide whether they should take any action to safeguard and promote the child's welfare.

Where referrals are not made by the DSL, the DSL <u>MUST</u> be informed, as soon as possible, that a referral has been made.

We recognise that a child who is abused or witnesses violence may feel helpless and humiliated, may blame themselves, and find it difficult to develop and maintain a sense of self-worth. We recognise that the School may provide the only stability in the lives of children who have been abused or who are at risk of harm and will always seek to support every child.

Our school will support all children by:

- encouraging self-esteem and self-assertiveness, through the curriculum as well as our relationships, and not condoning aggression or bullying;
- promoting a caring, safe and positive environment within the School;

- liaising and working together with all other support services and those agencies involved in the safeguarding of children;
- notifying Children's Services as soon as there is a significant concern;
- providing continuing support to a child about whom there have been concerns and who leaves the School, by ensuring that appropriate information is copied under confidential cover to the child's new setting and ensuring the School records (including medical records if appropriate) are forwarded as a matter of priority;
- listening to a child's wishes and feelings.

Children who may be particularly vulnerable

Many factors can contribute to an increased risk, including prejudice and discrimination, isolation, social exclusion, communication issues and reluctance on the part of some adults to accept that abuse happens.

To ensure that all our children receive full and adequate protection, we give special consideration and attention to any children in our care who are:

- disabled or have special educational needs;
- living in an identified domestic abuse situation;
- affected by known parental substance misuse;
- asylum seekers;
- living away from home, such as our boarders;
- vulnerable to being bullied, or engaging in bullying;
- living in temporary accommodation;
- living transient lifestyles;
- living in chaotic, neglectful and unsupportive home situations;
- vulnerable to discrimination and maltreatment on the grounds of a protected characteristic including race, ethnicity, religion or sexuality;
- involved directly or indirectly in prostitution or child trafficking;
- Not native English speakers i.e. English is not their first language;
- 'Looked After' Children (LACs) or children in care. This includes those who are subject to a care order or temporarily classed as looked after on a planned basis for short breaks or respite care.

Children with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities

Children with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND) can face additional safeguarding challenges. These additional barriers can include:

- assumptions that indicators of possible abuse such as behaviour, mood and injury relate to the child's disability without further exploration;
- being more prone to peer group isolation than other children;
- the potential for children with SEND being disproportionally impacted by behaviours such as bullying, without outwardly showing any signs; and
- communication barriers and difficulties in overcoming these barriers.

Additional pastoral support is offered to these children in order to address these challenges.

FGM

All staff have a mandatory reporting duty to report known cases of female genital mutilation (FGM) in under 18s to the Police immediately. (See <u>Appendix 5</u> 'Specific Safeguarding Concerns' p.36 and Appendix 1 'Key Contact Information' for details). This is a legal requirement.

Disclosures

If a pupil makes a direct allegation or disclosure, all staff should know how to:

- **Recognise** the signs of abuse (see <u>Appendix 3</u> 'What is Abuse' and <u>Appendix 4</u> 'Recognising Signs of Abuse';
- **Refer** straight to the DSL/DDSL (see <u>Appendix 7</u> 'Procedures for Managing Concerns';
- **Record** accurate notes as soon as possible including all necessary information; and
- **Respond** so that the pupil is reassured and feels listened to and supported (refer to <u>Appendix 6</u> for 'Guidance for Staff on Receiving a Disclosure' in these circumstances).

Allegations against staff

The School has procedures for dealing with allegations against staff – academic staff, support staff, the DSL, the Principal, Governors, volunteers and any other staff that work with children – that show the School's need to protect children from abuse and the need to protect staff and volunteers from false or unfounded allegations. These procedures are set out in <u>Appendix 8</u> 'Allegations against Staff: Procedure' and are in line with Part 4, KCSIE 2019.

We understand that a pupil may make an allegation against a member of staff. If such an allegation is made, or information is received which suggests that a person's conduct may have harmed or present a risk of harm to children, the member of staff receiving the allegation or aware of the information, will immediately inform the Principal, or Chair of Governors in the event of an allegation against the Principal.

The Principal will consult the Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO).

If the allegation made to a member of staff concerns the Principal, the person receiving the allegation will immediately inform the Chair of Governors who may consult with the DSL but will definitely contact the LADO and HR services, without notifying the Principal first.

Guidance, through the Code of Conduct, is given to all staff to ensure that their behaviour and actions do not place pupils or themselves at risk of harm, or allegations of harm to a pupil.

Whistle-blowing

We recognise that pupils cannot be expected to raise concerns in an environment where staff fail to do so.

All staff should, therefore, be aware of their duty to raise concerns, where they exist, about the management of child protection which may include the attitude or actions of colleagues. Staff and volunteers should feel able to raise concerns about practice and potential failures in the School's safeguarding regime. If it becomes necessary to consult outside the School, they should speak in the first instance, to the LADO and subsequently to other agencies, following the Whistleblowing Policy.

If a member of staff feels unable to raise an issue with their employer or feel that genuine concerns are not being addressed, staff can use the NSPCC whistleblowing helpline/ Staff 0800 0280285 (M-F 8am-8pm) or email help@nspcc.org .

Allegations against pupils: Peer on Peer Abuse

The behaviour and conduct of pupils towards each other will, in most instances, be covered by the three Schools' Behaviour and Anti-bullying Policies. However, it is recognised that some behaviour by pupils towards each other may raise safeguarding concerns. All staff recognise that children are capable of abusing their peers.

These behaviours may include but are not limited to:

- bullying (including Cyberbullying);
- physical abuse such as hitting, kicking, shaking, biting, hair pulling, or otherwise causing physical harm;
- sexual violence, such as rape, assault by penetration and sexual assault;
- sexual harassment, such as sexual comments, remarks, jokes and online sexual harassment which may be stand-alone or part of a broader pattern of abuse;
 - For further information on Sexual Violence and Harassment please see Part 5 KCSIE (2019) and also refer to Annex A.
- upskirting, which typically involves taking a picture under a person's clothing without them knowing, with the intention of viewing their genitals or buttocks to obtain sexual gratification, or cause the victim humiliation, distress or alarm;
- sexting (also known as youth produced sexual imagery); and
- initiation/hazing type violence and rituals.

The School takes steps to minimise the risk of peer on peer abuse: The School has robust behaviour and anti-bullying procedures in place. The pupils are taught, at all stages of the School, about acceptable behaviour and how to keep themselves safe.

Appropriate action is taken to identify and protect pupils who may be of increased risk due to home circumstances, SEND, emotional vulnerability or those within our boarding community and away from home.

Abusive behaviour by pupils will be taken seriously. The School recognises the gendered nature of peer on peer abuse but is clear that abuse is abuse, and it will never be tolerated. This behaviour will not be dismissed as being normal between young people or passed off as 'banter' or simply 'part of growing up'.

All allegations against pupils will be reported in accordance with this Policy, as for any other type of abuse:

- inform the DSL/DDSL immediately;
- if sexual violence or harassment is alleged, the DSL will consider informing the Police as well as the local Children's Services;
- the School will take advice from Children's Services and the Police, as appropriate, on when and how to inform the pupil about the allegation and how investigations of such allegations should be conducted;
- pupils against whom an allegation has been made, may be suspended from School during the investigation and the School's Behaviour Policy sanctions and the Exclusion, Removal and Review Policy may apply;
- the School will carry out risk assessments and take all appropriate action to ensure the safety and welfare of all pupils including the pupil or pupils accused of abuse – this will include a consideration of contextual safeguarding if possible, ie: what is occurring in the pupils' wider lives;
- the School will ensure that all pupils are supported throughout the situation, including being appropriately supported if interviewed by Police or Social Care professionals;
- in the case of pupils whose parents are abroad, the pupil's elected guardian will be informed and requested to support the pupil, including accommodating them if they are suspended from School during the investigation; and
- both the victim(s) and perpetrator(s) will be considered 'at risk' and each party will be fully supported by the School and outside agencies as necessary.

Serious Violence

All staff should be aware of indicators which may signal that children are at risk from or involved in serious crime. These may include:

- increased absence from school;
- a change in friendships or relationships with older individuals or groups;
- a significant decline in performance;
- signs of self-harm or a significant change in wellbeing;
- signs of assault or unexplained injuries; and
- unexplained gifts or new possessions.

All concerns should be noted and discussed with the DSL as soon as possible.

Prevention of harm

We recognise that the School plays a significant part in the prevention of harm to our children by providing children with good lines of communication with trusted adults, supportive friends and an ethos of protection.

The School community will therefore:

- ensure that the child's wishes are taken into account, where appropriate, when determining what action to take regarding a safeguarding concern to ensure that the child's best interest are always at their heart;
- work to establish and maintain an ethos where children feel secure and are encouraged to talk and are always listened to;
- ensure all staff can recognise the signs of abuse (see <u>Appendix 3</u> 'What is Abuse' and <u>Appendix 4</u> 'Recognising Signs of Abuse');
- ensure all staff are aware of wider, specific safeguarding concerns (see <u>Appendix 5</u> 'Specific Safeguarding Concerns');
- include regular consultation with children e.g. through safety questionnaires, participation in anti-bullying week, asking children to report whether they have had happy/sad lunchtimes/breaktimes;
- ensure that all children know there is an adult in the School who they can approach if they are worried or in difficulty;
- ensure that the School has adequate filtering systems to keep children safe when accessing the internet at school;
- include, across the curriculum including PSHEE, Relationships Education and Relationships and Sex Education, opportunities which equip children with the skills they need to stay safe from harm and to know to whom they should turn for help. The School's PSHEE and RSE education guidelines are set on in the Whole School PSHEE and RSE Policy. In particular, where appropriate, this will include child sexual exploitation, domestic violence, female genital mutilation, forced marriage, substance misuse, knives and gang activity, radicalisation and extremism, online safety, relationships (including sexual relationships), risks associated with, water, fire, roads and railways. Also focused work to prepare for transition to each new section of the School and personal safety/independent travel when appropriate; and
- ensure school staff members should follow formal procedures for dealing with children who go missing from education, particularly on repeat occasions, to help identify the risk of abuse and neglect including sexual abuse or exploitation (see 'Specific Safeguarding Concerns' - <u>Appendix 5</u> for more details on Children Missing Education and CSE).

Use of Mobile Phones and Personal Devices and Taking, Storing and Using Images of Pupils

Parts of the School's Policy on the use of mobile phones and personal devices is found in each School's staff handbook and sets out guidance for staff. Please see full Whole School Mobile Devices Policy for reference but essentially for staff:

- mobile phones/tablets/laptops should only be visible if there is a legitimate reason for them to be used in the support of teaching and/or in the case of an emergency.
- at all other times, personal mobile technology devices should be kept out of sight and switched off or switched to silent;
- in the EYFS: NO PERSONAL MOBILE PHONES OR TABLETS are to be in use at any time when pupils are present, or to be in sight of pupils at any time. They should be kept in the school or Nursery office or in a locked cupboard. School devices are provided for use in the EYFS;
- personal calls or messages should not be viewed or responded to whilst a staff member is on duty, and especially not when a staff member is in the presence of children;
- photographs taken on mobile devices and used within class lessons/ school activities depicting pupils of the school taking part in school activities must be uploaded to the school email system or drives as soon as possible, and never stored in the memory of a personal phone or tablet for more time than is necessary; and
- wherever possible, School devices should be used instead of personal devices.

And for pupils – again, please see full policy.

- it is not necessary for any Pre-Preparatory School pupil to have personal mobile devices in School.
- in the Preparatory School, pupils hand in their mobile phone (if they have one) at the start of the school day.
- in the Preparatory (in the case of their iPad) and Senior School, pupils who wish to use their device at school can only do so upon agreement of the School's Acceptable Use Policy and should only use the internet via the School network. Pupils must not attempt to bypass the School network and filtering policies. The use of the network is monitored carefully and any breaches of its use, and/or concerns raised regarding content being searched will result in the DSL/DDSL speaking with the pupil, contacting home, and possibly taking it to child services/police if there are concerns raised.

In accordance with the **Taking, Storing and Using Images of Pupils Policy**, the School complies with GDPR regulations and acknowledges that certain uses of images are necessary for the ordinary running of the School. Parent permission for those under 12, and pupil permission for those over 12, is sought regarding how images may be taken, stored and used by the School. Please refer to the full policy for more details – Taking, Storing and Using Images of Pupils Policy.

The Use of Reasonable Force

There are circumstances when it is appropriate for staff in schools to use reasonable force to safeguard children. The term 'reasonable force' covers the broad range of actions used by staff that involve a degree of physical contact to control or restrain children. This can range from guiding a child to safety by the arm, to more extreme circumstances such as breaking up a fight or where a young person needs to be restrained to prevent violence or injury. 'Reasonable' in these circumstances means 'using no more force than is needed'. The use of force may involve either passive physical contact, such as standing between pupils or blocking a pupil's path, or active physical contact such as leading a pupil by the arm out of the classroom. The decision on whether or not to use reasonable force to control or restrain a child is down to the professional judgement of the staff concerned and should always depend on individual circumstances.

Confidentiality, Record Keeping and Sharing of Information

We recognise that all matters relating to child protection are confidential and that it is essential to keep accurate records.

Staff must record concerns and disclosures in writing, as soon as possible, and hand them to the DSL. The DSL will ask for a child protection file to be opened that will thereafter contain all notes from discussions, updates and decisions made as well as action taken. Only the Principal, Heads of each part of the School, DSL/DDSLs and the Child Protection administrator will have sight of these records once the original document is filed.

The Principal or DSL/DDSLs will disclose any information about a child to other members of staff on a need-to-know basis only. 5

The School recognises its responsibility to co-operate with the Police and Children's Social Care to ensure that relevant information is shared for the purposes of child protection investigations under section 47 of the Children Act 1989. The School further understands that the Data Protection Act 2018 and GDPR do not prevent, or limit, the sharing of information for the purposes of keeping children safe. Fears about sharing information will not be allowed to stand in the way of the need to promote the safety of children.

All staff must be aware that they cannot promise a child to keep secrets that might compromise the child's safety or wellbeing.

Records will be kept securely and in line with GDPR retention and destruction rules as stated in the School's Data Protection Policy and with due regard to the Data Protection Act 2018 and will process personal information fairly and lawfully, keeping it safe and secure.

⁵ Guidance about sharing information, can be found in the DfE booklet 'Information sharing: advice for practitioners providing safeguarding services' Ref: DFE-00128-2015

When a child has given notice to leave the School, the DSL will consider whether it would be appropriate to share information with the new school in advance, in order for them to put support in place for when the child arrives. The safeguarding file will be sent securely following the child's start at the new School, separately to their school pupil file.

Working with Parents/Carers

The School is committed to working in partnership with parents/carers to safeguard and promote the welfare of child/ren and to support them to understand our statutory responsibilities in this area.

The School is committed to working with parents positively, openly and honestly. Parents will be treated with respect, dignity and courtesy. Parents' rights to privacy and confidentiality will be respected and sensitive information will not be shared unless permission is granted or it is necessary to do so in order to safeguard a child/ren.

The School will seek to share with parents any concerns about their child unless to do so may place a child at increased risk of harm. A lack of parental engagement or agreement regarding the concerns the School has about a child will not prevent the DSL making a referral to Children's Social Care and a Multi–Agency Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC) in those circumstances where it is appropriate to do so.

The School will always undertake to share the intention to refer a child to Social Care with parents/carers unless to do so could put the child at greater risk of harm, or impede a criminal investigation. If in doubt, the DSL will consult with the Children's Advice and Duty Team at the Children's Social Care Services, on this point.

Health & Safety

The School has a duty to ensure the safety of children whilst on the school site and hence a responsibility for making the site secure.

All staff have a responsibility for maintaining awareness of buildings and grounds security and for reporting concerns that may come to light. All staff have an ID card worn on a lanyard clearly identifying themselves as school staff. We operate within a wholecommunity ethos and welcome comments from pupils, parents and others about areas that may need improvement as well as what we are doing well.

Appropriate checks will be undertaken in respect of visitors and volunteers coming into school as outlined within guidance. Visitors will be expected to sign in and out via the office visitors' log, in whichever part of the School that they begin their visit, and to display a visitor's badge whilst on school site. All visitors will be advised of the School's basic safeguarding procedure and the identity of the DSL and DDSLs in school. Any individual who is not known or identifiable, by either a visitor's badge or a staff lanyard, should be challenged for clarification and reassurance. Schools have a responsibility for identifying approved adults who are collecting children from school. Where extended school activities are provided by and managed by the School, our own Child Protection and Safeguarding Policy and procedures apply. Where other organisations provide services or activities on our site, the member of the School's staff responsible for arranging the services or activities will check that the service or activity providers have appropriate procedures in place, including relevant risk assessments and safer recruitment procedures. Where visiting speakers are invited into school, a Google search of the individual will be carried out and, if appropriate, references from other schools sought. The content of a talk is vetted and a risk assessment completed. Visiting speakers are supervised at all times when onsite.

When our children attend off-site activities, including those abroad on School trips, we will check that effective child protection arrangements are in place. All staff are bound by the School's 'Educational Visits' Policy (within the Health and Safety Policy) when arranging and organising off-site trips.

The School will not accept the behaviour of any parent or individual that threatens the School security or leads others (child or adult) to feel unsafe. Such behaviour will be treated as a serious concern and may result in the decision to refuse access onto the school site for that individual, and the non-continuation of a child's education at King's Rochester, in line with our standard terms and conditions.

Our Health & Safety policy reflects the consideration we give to the protection of our children both physically within the school environment and, for example, in relation to Internet use and, as already mentioned above, when away from the school and undertaking school trips and visits.

Section 7: SUPPORTING STAFF

Through the existing School system of performance management, mentoring and staff consultation arrangements we will ensure that staff have routine opportunities to reflect on the well-being of their pupils, their own relationships inside and outside of School and to consider if there are any safeguarding concerns or suspicions.⁶

All staff and volunteers who require supervision when working with or supervising children will be monitored as set out in 'Keeping Children Safe in Education' by staff who are appropriately briefed about supervision responsibilities.

We recognise that staff working in the School, who have become involved with a child who has suffered harm, or appears to be likely to suffer harm, may find the situation stressful and upsetting. We will support such staff by providing regular sessions to talk through their anxieties with a named colleague and to seek further support as appropriate, and decisions made in these meetings will be recorded⁷.

⁶ The MSCB recommends that all staff in contact with children have opportunities for 'reflective' discussions about children in their care as safeguarding concerns are more readily identified.

⁷ MSCB Policy "A Framework for Safeguarding Practice Reflection"

Safer Recruitment

King's Rochester is committed to a culture of safe recruitment and, as part of that, adopt recruitment procedures that help deter, reject or identify people who might abuse children.

All suitable checks are carried out to ensure that all staff working within our School, who have substantial access to children, have been checked as to their suitability, including verification of their identity, qualifications, a satisfactory DBS check and where necessary a barred-list check (according to guidance)⁸, and that a single central record is kept for audit purposes. For those working with EYFS children and those working with children between 5-8 years old, outside of normal school hours, a disqualification from working with children declaration is also completed.

Section 8: MONITORING AND EVALUATION

The School's Child Protection and Safeguarding Policy and procedures will be monitored and evaluated by:

- the DSL reporting, when necessary, to the Executive Board (which meets weekly);
- the DSL/DDSLs each term during a working lunch meeting;
- discussions with staff in staff meetings;
- pupil surveys and questionnaires;
- scrutiny of range of risk assessments;
- the Safeguarding Link Governor and full Governing Body visits to the School;
- Scrutiny of Governing Body (GB) minutes standing item on every committee's agenda;
- logs of bullying/racist/behaviour incidents for EB, SMT and GB to monitor;
- review of parental concerns and parent questionnaires; and
- review of outside school activities eg breakfast and after school clubs.

Any safeguarding incidents at the School will be followed by a review of these procedures by the DSL and the Principal, and a report made to the Safeguarding Link Governor. Where an incident involves a member of staff, the LADO will be asked to assist in this review to determine whether any improvements can be made to the School's procedures. Any deficiencies or weaknesses in arrangements will be remedied immediately.

The full Governing Body undertakes an annual review of this Policy and the School's procedures. The DSL, in conjunction with the Safeguarding Governor, prepares a full report for them each year that addresses training and referral information, amongst other things.

⁸ Guidance regarding DBS checks recently updated by the Protection of Freedoms Act 2012 and statutory guidance on "Keeping Children Safe in Education"

Appendix 1: KEY CONTACT INFORMATION

Name	Title	Telephone	Email contact
Mrs Catherine Openshaw	Designated Safeguarding Lead & Headmistress of the Pre-Preparatory School	01634 888560	<u>copenshaw@kings-rochester.co.uk</u>
Father Stephen Padfield	Deputy Designated Safeguarding Lead & Whole School Chaplain	01634 888555	spadfield@kings-rochester.co.uk
Mrs Sarah Walsh (Preparatory School 8-13 years)	Deputy Designated Safeguarding Lead & Class Teacher in the Preparatory School	01634 888577	<u>swalsh@kings-rochester.co.uk</u>
Mrs Kellie Crozer (Pre-Preparatory School 3-8 years)	Deputy Designated Safeguarding Lead, Deputy Headmistress in the Pre- Preparatory School	01634 888566	kcrozer@kings-rochester.co.uk
Mr Ben Charles	Principal	01634 888551	principal@kings-rochester.co.uk
Mrs Anne Rouse	Child Protection & Safeguarding Link Governor & retired Principal/ Chair of Education Committee	01634 819573	arouse@kings-rochester.co.uk
Ms Jacqueline Shicluna	Chair of Governors	01634 888555	jshicluna@kings-rochester.co.uk
	Medway LADO	01634 331 307 01634 336 204 01634 331 695	LADO Admin: 01634 331 065
Medway Safeguarding Children Partnership (MSCP) CADS (Children's Advice and Duty Service)		01631 331 053 01634 334466 Or out of hours: 03000 419191	
Kent Safeguarding Children Partnership (KSCP)		03000 411111 Or out of hours: 03000 419191	
Early Help		Medway: 01634 338746 Kent: 03000 419222	Medway: <u>ehsupport@medway.gov.uk</u> Kent: <u>earlyhelp@kent.gov.uk</u>
NSPCC		0800 028 0285 (M-F 8am-8pm)	help@nspcc.org.uk
Childline		0800 1111	
Counter extremism/ Prevent Duty	Advice line for staff/ Governors 020 7340 7264	101 or 999 in an emergency	Counter-extremism@education.gsi.gov.uk
Child Exploitation & Online Protection Centre		101 for advice or 999 in an emergency	www.ceop-police.uk/ceop-report
Reporting FGM	Police	101 or 999	
UK Safer Internet Centre		0344 381 4772	helpline@saferinternet.org.uk
Police (ask to speak to Combined Safeguarding Team)		101 for advice or 999 in an emergency	

Any concerns of a safeguarding nature should be reported as soon as possible, ideally using the locally approved form provided in Appendix 8, which can be handed/sent to the DSL or one of her Deputies. Further advice can be sought from the DSL about reporting mechanisms and read within this policy. Key contacts for King's Rochester are provided on this page of this policy and in Appendix 1. However, it should be noted that a concern can be registered directly with the Local Safeguarding Children Board without the need to liaise with the DSL, and in an emergency or if a crime is believed to have been committed, direct contact with the Police can be made by telephoning 999.

Appendix 2: THE ROLE OF THE DSL/DDSLs

The DSL is:

Mrs Catherine Openshaw, Headmistress of the Pre-Preparatory School and a member of the Senior Management Team, who takes lead responsibility for all safeguarding and child protection matters arising at the School.

Direct Contact: 01635 888560

The DDSLs are:		
In the Pre-Preparatory School:	Mrs Kellie Crozer	contact: 01634 888566
In the Preparatory School:	Mrs Sarah Walsh	contact: 01634 888577
In the Senior School:	Father Stephen Padfield	contact: 01634 888555

The DDSLs will carry out the role of the DSL where the DSL is unavailable.

DSL (and DDSLs) broad areas of responsibility as listed in Annex B, KCSIE (2019):

Managing referrals

- The DSL is expected to:
 - refer cases of suspected abuse to the appropriate local authority Children's Advice and Duty Service as required;
 - support staff who make referrals to the appropriate local authority Children's Advice and Duty Service;
 - refer cases to the Channel programme where there is a radicalisation concern as required;
 - support staff who make referrals to the Channel programme;
 - refer cases where a person is dismissed or left due to risk/harm to a child to the Disclosure and Barring Service as required; and
 - refer cases where a crime may have been committed to the Police as required.

Work with others

• The DSL is expected to:

- liaise with the Principal to inform him or her of issues especially ongoing enquiries under section 47 of the Children Act 1989 and police investigations;
- as required, liaise with the Principal or assigned 'case manager' (as referred to in KCSIE, Part four) and the LADO (local authority designated officer(s)) at the local authority for child protection concerns in cases which concern a staff member;
- liaise with staff (especially pastoral support staff, school nurses, IT Technicians and SENCO on matters of safety and safeguarding

(including online and digital safety) and when deciding whether to make a referral by liaising with relevant agencies; and

• act as a source of support, advice and expertise for all staff.

Training

The DSL (and DDSLs) should undergo training to provide them with the knowledge and skills required to carry out the role. This training should be updated at least every two years.

They should all undertake Prevent awareness training.

In addition to the formal training set out above, their knowledge and skills should be refreshed (this might be via e-bulletins, meeting together or with other DSLs/DDSLs, or simply taking time to read and digest safeguarding developments) at regular intervals, as required, and at least annually, to allow them to understand and keep up with any developments relevant to their role so they:

- understand the assessment process for providing Early Help and statutory intervention, including local criteria for action and the local authority Children's Advice and Duty Service referral arrangements;
- have a working knowledge of how local authorities conduct a 'Child Protection Case Conference' and a 'Child Protection Review Conference' and be able to attend and contribute to these effectively when required to do so;
- ensure each member of staff has access to, and understands, the School's Child Protection and Safeguarding Policy and procedures, especially new and part time staff;
- are alert to the specific needs of children in need, those with special educational needs and young carers when appropriate;
- understand relevant data protection legislation and regulations especially the Data Protection Act 2018 and the General Data Protection Regulation;
- understand the importance of information sharing, written within the school, with the Cathedral and with the three safeguarding partners, other agencies, organisations and practitioners;
- are able to keep detailed, accurate, secure written records of concerns and referrals;
- understand and support the School with regards to the requirements of the Prevent duty and are able to provide advice and support to staff on protecting children from the risk of radicalisation;
- are able to understand the unique risks associated with online safety and be confident that they have the relevant knowledge and up to date capability required to keep children safe whilst they are online at school;
- can recognise the additional risks that children with SEN and disabilities (SEND) face online, for example, from online bullying, grooming and radicalisation and

are confident they have the capability to support SEND children to stay safe online;

- obtain access to resources and attend any relevant or refresher training courses; and
- encourage a culture of listening to children and taking account of their wishes and feelings, among all staff, in any measures the School may put in place to protect them.

Raising Awareness

The DSL should:

- ensure the School's Child Protection and Safeguarding Policy is known, understood and used appropriately;
- ensure the School's Child Protection and Safeguarding Policy is reviewed annually (as a minimum) and the procedures and implementation are updated and reviewed regularly, and work with nominated link Governor regarding this;
- ensure the Child Protection and Safeguarding Policy is available publicly and parents are aware of the fact that referrals about suspected abuse or neglect may be made and the role of the School in this; and
- link with the local Safeguarding Children Partnerships to make sure staff are aware of any training opportunities and the latest local policies on local safeguarding arrangements.

Child protection file

Where children leave the School, the DSL will ensure that their child protection file is transferred to the new school as soon as possible. This will be transferred separately from the main pupil file, ensuring secure transit, and a confirmation of receipt be obtained. Receiving schools should ensure key staff such as DSLs and SENCOs, or the named person with oversight for SEND, are aware as required.

In addition to the child protection file, the DSL will also consider if it would be appropriate to share any information with the new school in advance of a child leaving. For example, information that would allow the new school to continue supporting victims of abuse and have that support in place for when the child arrives.

Miscellaneous

The DSL and any DDSLs who are involved in recruitment, and at least one member of the Governing Body, will also complete Safer Recruitment Training. At least one member of staff who is safer recruitment trained will sit on each interview panel for any role in the School.

The name of the designated members of staff for child protection, the Designated Safeguarding Lead and Deputies (DSL & DDSLs), will be clearly advertised in the School. The School makes clear its role in referring and monitoring cases of suspected abuse.

All new members of staff will be given a copy of our Child Protection and Safeguarding Policy, with the DSL/DDSLs' names clearly displayed, as part of their induction into the School and receive training.

Parents/carers are made aware of this policy and their entitlement to have a copy of it via the school website.

Appendix 3: WHAT IS ABUSE?

Identifying Abuse

All School staff should be aware that abuse, neglect and safeguarding issues are rarely standalone events that can be covered by one definition or label. In most cases, multiple issues will overlap with one another.

Abuse is a form of maltreatment of a child. Somebody may abuse or neglect a child by inflicting harm, or by failing to act to prevent harm. Children may be abused in a family or in an institutional or community setting by those known to them or, more rarely, by others. Abuse can take place wholly online, or technology may be used to facilitate offline abuse. They may be abused by an adult or adults or another child or children. (KCSIE 2019)

There are four main categories of abuse and neglect: **physical abuse**, **emotional abuse**, **sexual abuse** and **neglect**.

The most up to date definitions and possible indicators and signs of abuse are found below. Staff should also refer to Part 1 of KCSIE (2019) <u>'Keeping children safe in education' 2019</u> and <u>'What to do if you are worried a child is being abused' 2015.</u>

Children from all types of background may be abused physically, emotionally, sexually or through neglect. It is not always easy to recognise or accept that abuse is happening.

Physical Abuse: a form of abuse which may involve hitting, shaking, throwing, poisoning, burning or scalding, drowning, suffocating or otherwise causing physical harm to a child. Physical harm may also be caused when a parent or carer fabricates the symptoms of, or deliberately induces, illness in a child.

Emotional Abuse: the persistent emotional maltreatment of a child such as to cause severe and adverse effects on the child's emotional development. It may involve conveying to a child that they are worthless or unloved, inadequate, or valued only insofar as they meet the needs of another person. It may include not giving the child opportunities to express their views, deliberately silencing them or 'making fun' of what they say or how they communicate. It may feature age or developmentally inappropriate expectations being imposed on children. These may include interactions that are beyond a child's developmental capability as well as overprotection and limitation of exploration and learning, or preventing the child participating in normal social interaction. It may involve seeing or hearing the ill treatment of another. It may involve serious bullying (including cyber-bullying), causing children frequently to feel frightened or in danger, or the exploitation or corruption of children. Some level of emotional abuse is involved in all types of maltreatment of a child, although it may also occur alone.

Sexual Abuse: involves forcing or enticing a child or young person to take part in sexual activities, not necessarily involving a high level of violence, whether or not the child is aware of what is happening. The activities may involve physical contact, including assault

by penetration (for example rape or oral sex) or non- penetrative acts such as masturbation, kissing, rubbing and touching outside of clothing. They may also include non-contact activities, such as involving children in looking at, or in the production of, sexual images, watching sexual activities, encouraging children to behave in sexually inappropriate ways, or grooming a child in preparation for abuse. Sexual abuse can take place online, and technology can be used to facilitate offline abuse. Sexual abuse is not solely perpetrated by adult males. Women can also commit acts of sexual abuse, as can other children. The sexual abuse of children by other children is a specific safeguarding issue in education.

Neglect: the persistent failure to meet a child's basic physical and/or psychological needs, likely to result in the serious impairment of the child's health or development. Neglect may even occur during pregnancy as a result of maternal substance abuse. Once a child is born, neglect may involve a parent or carer failing to: provide adequate food, clothing and shelter (including exclusion from home or abandonment); protect a child from physical and emotional harm or danger; ensure adequate supervision (including the use of inadequate care-givers); or ensure access to appropriate medical care or treatment. It may also include neglect of, or unresponsiveness to, a child's basic emotional needs.

Appendix 4: RECOGNISING SIGNS OF ABUSE

As part of training, staff are provided with the following guidance for recognising the signs or abuse:

<u>Physical Abuse</u>

Determining whether an injury is accidental or non-accidental is a skilled job. It requires a full assessment of the injury, explanation, history and circumstances. This is not the role of a teacher.

There are, however, a number of injuries which should be regarded with concern and may indicate a non-accidental cause. Some may need medical assessment and treatment, occasionally urgently. Injuries need to be accounted for.

Inadequate, inconsistent, or excessively plausible explanations, or a delay in seeking treatment for the child, should signal concern.

Some of the following signs may be particular indicators of physical abuse:

Physical indicators:

- finger mark bruising on cheeks or any other area of the body where bruises are unlikely to appear in everyday play;
- presence of injuries that are in several stages of healing suggesting that a child has experienced repeated maltreatment over time;
- injuries to the soles of the feet;
- bald patches on a child's head;
- bite marks;
- injuries that form a shape or pattern;
- scald marks and burning, including cigarette marks;
- black eyes;
- marks that might indicate a child has been restrained or strangled;
- broken bones; and
- any injuries that are inconsistent with the explanation given.

Behavioural indicators:

- flinching when touched;
- inability to recall how injuries occurred;
- avoiding getting changed for sporting or other activity;
- reluctance to go home;
- wearing trousers and shirts or blouses with long sleeves even on hot sunny days, although remember to consider this in the light of the individual child (eg some children are dressed 'modestly for religious and/or cultural reasons);
- excessively eager to please;
- very aggressive or withdrawn;
- attempts to run away;

- sad, frequently cries;
- drug and/or alcohol misuse; and
- any behaviour that is not consistent with a child's stage of development.

Emotional Abuse

Some of the following signs may be particular indicators of emotional abuse:

Physical indicators:

- self-harm marks;
- erratic weight or growth patterns;
- delayed development, either physically or emotionally; and
- erratic behaviour.

Behavioural indicators:

- difficulty in forming relationships;
- inappropriate attention-seeking;
- withdrawn;
- unexplained underachievement at school;
- self-harming;
- bed-wetting; and
- disturbed sleep.

Sexual Abuse

Some of the following signs may be particular indicators of sexual abuse:

Physical indicators:

- stomach pains;
- genital soreness, bleeding or discharge;
- recurring genital-urinary infections;
- underage pregnancy;
- discomfort in walking or sitting; and
- sexually transmitted infections.

Behavioural indicators:

- a change in behaviour;
- not wanting to undress;
- sexual knowledge, language and behaviours beyond their age;
- eating disorders;
- fear or avoidance of being with a person or a group of people;
- withdrawn;
- self-harming;
- unexplained amounts of money;
- disturbed sleep;
- sexualised drawings;
- change in handwriting; and

• the types of questions asked (do they suggest sexual knowledge that a child should not have).

<u>Neglect</u>

Some of the following signs may be particular indicators of neglect:

Physical indicators:

- poor personal hygiene/unwashed clothing;
- inadequate clothing (not having warm clothes in winter);
- lack of muscle tone (bones appearing to stick out);
- lack of energy due to inadequate food intake and/or poor nutrition;
- untreated skin or hair problems (rashes, sores, flea bites, head lice);
- unattended medical or dental problems;
- consistent hunger/big appetite -can't seem to eat enough; and
- very thin or swollen stomach.

Behavioural indicators:

- difficulty in making friends;
- missing or irregularly attending school or nursery;
- anti-social behaviour;
- withdrawn;
- steals food or begs it from others;
- developmental delay (weight, language, social skills);
- demands constant attention and affection; and
- alcohol or substance misuse.

Faltering growth (failure to thrive)

In addition to the general signs of neglect physical and behavioural indicators of faltering growth include:

- child has not attained significant developmental milestones;
- low body-fat ratio;
- dehydration;
- normal growth which is interrupted by a period of failing to gain weight or even losing weight;
- child appears listless or undemanding; and
- does not show interest in surroundings and is unresponsive to stimulation.
Appendix 5: SPECIAL SAFEGUARDING ISSUES

All staff should have an awareness of safeguarding issues that can put children at risk of harm. Behaviour linked to issues such as drug taking, alcohol abuse, deliberately missing education and sexting (also known as producing sexual imagery) put children in danger.

KCSIE (2019) acknowledges the following specific safeguarding issues:

- children missing from education (see below);
- children missing from home or care;
- child sexual exploitation (see below);
- child criminal exploitation: county lines (see below);
- bullying including cyberbullying (see below);
- domestic abuse;
- drugs;
- fabricated or induced illness;
- faith-based abuse;
- honour-base violence including:
 - female genital mutilation (see below);
 - forced marriage (see below);
- gender-based violence / violence against women and girls (VAWG);
- hate;
- mental health;
- missing children and adults;
- private fostering;
- preventing radicalisation (see below);
- peer on Peer Abuse
- sexual violence and sexual harassment between children (see below);
- upskirting
- sexting (see below); and
- trafficking and modern slavery.

Contextual Safeguarding

Safeguarding incidents and/or behaviours can be associated with factors outside the School and/or can occur between children outside the School. All staff, but especially the DSL/DDSLs should consider the context within which such incidents and/or behaviours occur. This is known as contextual safeguarding, which simply means assessments of children should consider whether wider environmental factors are present in a child's life that are a threat to their safety and/or welfare.

Children Missing from Education and Missing Children

'Children missing from education' refers to all children of compulsory school age who are not on a school roll or being educated otherwise (e.g. privately or in alternative provision) or who have been out of any educational provision for a substantial period of time.

All staff should be aware that children going missing, particularly repeatedly, can act as a vital warning sign of a range of safeguarding possibilities. This may include abuse and neglect, which may include sexual abuse or exploitation and child criminal exploitation. It may indicate mental health problems, risk of substance abuse, risk of travelling to conflict zones, risk of female genital mutilation or risk of forced marriage. Early intervention is necessary to identify the existence of any underlying safeguarding risk and to help prevent the risks of a child going missing in future. Any concerns of this nature should be reported to the DSL as soon as possible.

The School will inform the local authority of any pupil who is going to be added or deleted from the School's admission register at non-standard transition points in accordance with the requirements of the Education (Pupil Registration) (England) Regulations 2006 (as amended).

As a result of daily registration, schools are particularly well placed to notice when a child has gone missing, including during the school day and monitor trends in attendance.

The School will inform the local authority if a pupil fails to attend School regularly or has been absent without the School's permission for a continuous period of 10 school days or at such intervals as determined by the local authority or the Secretary of State.

For children missing during the school day, the School will ensure that where reasonably possible each pupil will have more than one emergency contact number. If a member of staff becomes aware that a child may have run away or gone missing, the following procedure should be put into action (in accordance with the School's Missing Child Policy):

- Staff will maintain safety and the well-being of other children;
- A roll-call will be taken;
- A member of the Senior Management Team, and one other member of staff, will search the immediate vicinity;
- If those involved in the search all agree that the child is missing, the Police will be contacted via dialling 999 (this will be done within 20 minutes for EYFS, Nursery and Pre-Preparatory, 30 minutes for Preparatory School Pupils and 1 Hour for Senior School Pupils);
- The Main School Office at Satis House should be notified 01634 888555;
- The Preparatory School Office at St. Nicholas House should be notified on 01634 888577/888578;
- The Pre-Preparatory School Office at Chadlington House should be notified on 01634 888566;

- The emergency after-hours telephone number is: 07969 515370;
- The Head of the relevant part of the School will contact the parents of the missing child, (this will be done within 20 minutes for EYFS, Nursery and Pre-Preparatory, 30 minutes for Preparatory School Pupils and 1 Hour for Senior School Pupils);
- Once the Police arrive, all relevant information about the child will be given and they will then take over the search.
- If off site, the Group Leader will remain to liaise with the Police and to comfort the child when found. They will also maintain regular contact with the School. The remaining staff and children will return to School.

Missing boarders outside of the school day:

- Check the child does not have any additional activities such as matches, drama, music etc, and check the sign in/out book;
- If the child's whereabouts is unknown the Housemistress must be informed by the duty tutor;
- Question other children from the house;
- Phone the child's mobile;
- Initiate a search in the boarding house and grounds, the high street and local area;
- Contact and check with friends from outside of boarding;
- Contact all other boarding house staff to check that there has not been additional communication received informing us of an absence;
- Contact the other boarding house to check their house and surrounding area;
- Inform the Deputy Head Pastoral/ Principal;
- As soon as the child is confirmed as missing then phone parents and guardians to check if they have any information;
- Contact the police.

Guidelines of questions to be asked:

- When was he/she last seen?
- Who was he/she with?
- Where might he/she have gone?
- Is this child 'vulnerable' in any particular way?
- What emotional state did he/she appear to be in?
- Has anything upset him/her recently?
- Did he/she speak to anyone about leaving?
- Who are his/her main friends at School?
- Does he/she have a mobile phone and what is the number?
- Does he/she have a special friend?
- Is there any reason to believe he/she might have been abducted? (e.g. family custody dispute; very wealthy/prominent parents.)
- Have there ever been concerns of this nature before?

If off site, the Group Leader will remain to liaise with the Police and to comfort the child when found. They will also maintain regular contact with the School. The remaining staff and children will return to School.

When the situation has been concluded, the Head of the relevant part of the School will make a written record of the incident, the action taken, and any reasons given by the pupil for being missing.

However, where a risk of harm is suspected, the DSL would consider a discussion with parents, if appropriate, reporting the child missing to the Police and contacting the local Children's Advice and Duty Service.

Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE)

Child sexual exploitation is a form of child sexual abuse. It occurs where an individual or group takes advantage of an imbalance of power to coerce, manipulate or deceive a child or young person under the age of 18 into sexual activity (a) in exchange for something the victim needs or wants, and/or (b) for the financial advantage or increased status of the perpetrator or facilitator. The victim may have been sexually exploited even if the sexual activity appears consensual. Child sexual exploitation does not always involve physical contact, it can also occur through the use of technology. Like all forms of child sex abuse, child sexual exploitation:

- can affect any child or young person (male or female) under the age of 18 years, including 16 and 17 year olds who can legally consents to have sex;
- can still be abuse even if the sexual activity appears consensual;
- can include both contact (penetrative and non-penetrative acts) and non-contact sexual activity;
- can take place in person or via technology, or a combination of both;
- can involve force and/or enticement-based methods of compliance and may, or may not, be accompanied by violence or threats of violence;
- may occur without the child or young person's immediate knowledge (eg: through others copying videos or images they have created and posted on social media);
- can be perpetrated by individuals or groups, males or females, and children or adults. The abuse can be a one-off occurrence or a series of incidents over time, and range from opportunistic to complex organised abuse; and
- is typified by some form of power imbalance in favour of those perpetrating the abuse. Whilst age may be the most obvious, this power imbalance can also be due to a range of other factors including gender, sexual identity, cognitive ability, physical strength, status, and accessed economic or other resources.

Some of the following signs maybe indicators of child sexual exploitation:

- children who appear with unexplained gifts or new possessions;
- children who associate with other young people involved in exploitation;

- children who have older boyfriends or girlfriends;
- children who suffer from sexually transmitted infections or become pregnant;
- children who suffer from changes in emotional well-being;
- children who miss use drugs and alcohol;
- children who go missing for periods of time or regularly come home late; and
- children who regularly miss school or education or do not take part in education.

Professionals in all agencies need to be alert to the possibility that children can be at risk of sexual exploitation.

Criminal Exploitation (CCE): county lines

Child criminal exploitation of children is a geographically widespread form of harm that is a typical feature of county lines criminal activity, drug networks or gangs groom and exploit children and young children to carry drugs and money from urban areas to suburban and rural areas, market and seaside towns. Key to identifying potential involvement in county lines are missing episodes, when the victim may have been trafficked for the purpose of transporting drugs. Like other forms of abuse and exploitation, county lines exploitation can affect any child a young person under the age of 18 and can affect any vulnerable adults over the age of 18. It can still be exploitation even if the activity appears consensual and can involve force and/or enticement-based methods of compliance and is often accompanied by violence or threats of violence. This form of exploitation is typified by some form of power imbalance in favour of those perpetrating the exploitation and can be perpetrated by individuals or groups, males or females, and young people or adults. Whilst age may be the most obvious, the power imbalance can also be due to a range of other factors including gender, cognitive ability, physical strength, status, and access to economic or other resources.

Anti-Bullying

Our School's policy on Anti-bullying is set out in a separate document and all staff acknowledge that, to allow or condone bullying may lead to concerns being escalated to senior management and consideration will be given to a referral to Children's Social Care dependent on the concerns. This includes all forms e.g. cyber, racist, homophobic and gender related bullying, sexual assaults and sexting. Staff are clear on the Schools policy and procedure regarding peer on peer abuse as outlined in this policy and in training. We keep a record of known bullying incidents.

All staff are aware that some children perceived as being different are more susceptible to being bullied / victims of child abuse.

Honour-Based Violence (HBV) including FGM and Forced Marriage

So-called 'honour-based' violence (HBV) encompasses incidents or crimes which have been committed to protect or defend the honour of the family and/or the community, including Female Genital Mutilation (FGM), forced marriage, and practices such as breast ironing. Abuse committed in the context of preserving "honour" often involves a wider network of family or community pressure and can include multiple perpetrators. It is important to be aware of this dynamic and additional risk factors were deciding what form of safeguarding action to take. All forms of so called HBV are abuse (regardless of the motivation) and should be handled and escalated as such. If in any doubt, staff should speak to the DSL. Professionals in all agencies, and individuals and groups in relevant communities, need to be alert to the possibility of a child being at risk of HBV, or already having suffered HBV.

Female Genital Mutilation (FGM)

FGM comprises all procedures involving partial or total removal of the external female genitalia or other injury to the female genital organs. It is illegal in the UK and a form of child abuse with long-lasting harmful consequences.

Professionals in all agencies, and individuals and groups in relevant communities, need to be alert to the possibility of a girl being at risk of FGM, or already having suffered FGM. There is a range of potential indicators that a child or young person may be at risk of FGM, which individually may not indicate risk but if there are two or more indicators present this could signal a risk to the child or young person. Find these on the FGM Factsheet <u>here</u>. Victims of FGM are likely to come from a community that is known to practise FGM.

All staff are aware that they have a mandatory, legal duty (under Section 5B of the Female Genital Mutilation Act 2003) to personally report to the Police cases where they discover that an act of FGM appears to have been carried out on a girl under 18. All members of staff should report concerns to the DSL and involve the local Children's Advice and Duty Service, as appropriate. The duty does not apply in relation to at risk or suspected cases (i.e. where the teacher does not discover that an act of FGM appears to have been carried out, either through disclosure by the victim or visual evidence) or in cases where the woman is 18 or over. In these cases, local safeguarding procedures should be followed. ⁹

At King's Rochester, all DSL/DDSLs and senior staff complete the free online home office training around FGM.

Forced Marriage

Forcing a person into a marriage is a crime in England and Wales. A forced marriage is one entered into without the full and free consent of one or both parties and where violence, threats or any other form of coercion is used to cause a person to enter into a

⁹ Please refer to "Mandatory Reporting of Female Genital Mutilation – procedural information" Annex A: FGM Mandatory Reporting Process Map for 'known' cases and the current process

marriage. Threats can be physical or emotional and psychological. A lack of full and free consent can be where a person does not consent or where they cannot consent (if they have learning disabilities, for example). Nevertheless, some communities use religion and culture as a way to coerce a person into marriage. Schools can play an important role in safeguarding children from forced marriage.

The Forced Marriage Unit has published statutory guidelines and <u>Multi-agency</u> <u>guidelines¹⁰</u>, with pages 32-36 focusing on the role of schools. School staff can contact the Forced Marriage Unit if they need advice or information: Contact: 020 7008 0151 or email <u>fmu@fco.gov.uk</u>.

Staff should always speak to the DSL/DDSLs if they have any concerns.

Preventing Radicalisation under The Counter-Terrorism and Security Act

The School has a legal duty to have due regard to the need to prevent people from being drawn into terrorism.

Children are vulnerable to extremist ideology and radicalisation. Similar to protecting children from other forms of harms and abuse, protecting children from this risk is part of the School's safeguarding approach.

Hence, every member of staff at King's Rochester recognises that safeguarding children exposed to radicalisation and extremism is no different to safeguarding against any other vulnerability and should be approached in the same way as protecting children from other risks.

KCSIE (2019) states:

Extremism is the vocal or active opposition to our fundamental values, including democracy, the rule of law, individual liberty and the mutual respect and tolerance of different faiths and beliefs. This also includes calling for the death of members of the armed forces.

Radicalisation refers to the process by which a person comes to support terrorism and extremist ideologies associated with terrorist groups.

There is no single way of identifying whether a child is likely to be susceptible to an extremist ideology. Background factors combined with specific influences such as family and friends may contribute to a child's vulnerability. Similarly, radicalisation can occur through many different methods (such as social media) and settings (such as the internet).

However, it is possible to protect vulnerable people from extremist ideology and intervene to prevent those at risk of radicalisation being radicalised. As with other

¹⁰ Multi-agency practice guidelines: Handling cases of Forced Marriage, June 2014

safeguarding risks, staff should be alert to changes in children's behaviour which could indicate that they may be in need of help or protection. Staff should use their judgement in identifying children who might be at risk of radicalisation and act proportionately which may include the DSL/DDSLs making a referral to the Channel programme.

All schools are subject to a duty under section 26 of the Counter-Terrorism and Security Act 2015, in the exercise of their functions, to have "due regard to the need to prevent people from being drawn into terrorism". This duty is known as the Prevent Duty. The Prevent Duty is seen as part of the School's wider safeguarding obligations.

Every member of academic staff, all senior staff and governors have completed an elearning training package developed by the Police or, more recently, Educare on Prevent which includes guidance on how to identify people who may be vulnerable to being drawn into terrorism, and how to refer them into the Channel process. ¹¹ This awareness and training is in accordance with current statutory guidance. ¹²

The DSL (and DDSLs) have additional online training on the Prevent Duty and is in accordance with current statutory guidance. ¹³ The DSL will ensure that any new information around Prevent is disseminated with staff and review how the School protects children online.

The Channel programme focuses on providing support at an early stage to people who identified as being vulnerable to being drawn into terrorism. It provides a mechanism for schools to make referrals if they're concerned that an individual might be vulnerable to radicalisation. Any member of staff concerned about a pupil should speak to the DSL as soon as possible.

The School ensures that we use time within the school year to allow pupils to explore controversial issues in a safe environment. All staff want to increase children's resilience and make them aware of how they influence and participate in decision making. We promote pupils' spiritual, moral, social and cultural development and within this, fundamental British Values. ¹⁴ The School's guidelines for SMSC and FBV education are set out in the Whole School SMS and FBV Policy.

The School also invites speakers into school. It is expected that anyone who books such a speaker ensures the content of the talk is vetted and suitable for its audience in advance. A risk assessment is completed and a Google search of the individual undertaken. If appropriate, references from other schools where they have spoken before may be sought. The visitor is supervised at all times on the school site.

¹¹ Awareness Training (channel programme) can be found at <u>www.preventforschools.org</u>

¹² The Prevent duty: Departmental Advice for schools and childcare providers (2015)

¹³ The Prevent duty: Departmental Advice for schools and childcare providers (2015)

¹⁴ The Prevent duty: Departmental Advice for schools and childcare providers (2015)

Sexual Violence and Sexual Harassment between Children

Sexual violence and sexual harassment can occur between two or more children of **any** age and sex. It can also occur through a group of children sexually assaulting or sexually harassing a single child or group of children.

Children who are victims of sexual violence and sexual harassment will likely find the experience stressful and distressing. This will, in all likelihood, adversely affect their educational attainment. Sexual violence and sexual harassment exist on a continuum and may overlap, they can occur online and offline (both physical and verbal) and are never acceptable. The school will respond to allegations seriously and all victims will be offered appropriate support. Staff are aware that some groups are potentially more at risk. Evidence shows girls, children with SEND and LGBT children are at greater risk.

The School is aware of the importance of:

- making it clear to pupils that sexual violence and sexual harassment is not acceptable, will never be tolerated and is not an inevitable part of growing up;
- not tolerating or dismissing sexual violence or sexual harassment as "banter", "part of growing up", "just having a laugh" or "boys being boys"; and
- challenging behaviours (which are potentially criminal in nature), such as grabbing bottoms, breasts and genitalia. Dismissing or tolerating such behaviours risks normalising them.

When referring to sexual violence, references are to sexual offences under the Sexual Offences Act 2003, specifically Rape, Assault by Penetration and Sexual Assault. All of these are devoid of consent from one of the persons involved.

Consent is about having the freedom and capacity to choose. Consent to sexual activity may be given to one sort of sexual activity but not another, e.g. to vaginal but not anal sex or penetration with conditions, such as wearing a condom. Consent can be withdrawn at any time during sexual activity and each time activity occurs. Someone consents to vaginal, anal or oral penetration only if s/he agrees by choice to that penetration and has the freedom and capacity to make that choice.

References to sexual harassment mean 'unwanted conduct of a sexual nature' that can occur online and offline. In the context of child on child sexual harassment, it is likely to: violate a child's dignity; and/or make them feel intimidated, degraded or humiliated; and/or create a hostile, offensive or sexualised environment.

Sexual Harassment can include:

- sexual comments, such as: telling sexual stories, making lewd comments, making sexual remarks about clothing and appearance and calling someone sexualised names;
- sexual 'jokes' or taunting;

- physical behaviour, such as: deliberately brushing against someone, interfering with someone's clothes and displaying pictures, photos or drawings of a sexual nature; and
- online harassment. This may be standalone or part of a wider pattern of sexual harassment and/or sexual violence. It may include:
 - o non-consensual sharing of sexual images and videos;
 - sexualised online bullying;
 - o unwanted sexual comments and messages, including, on social media;
 - o sexual exploitation; coercion and threats; and
 - 0 upskirting.

The Government advice 'Sexual violence and sexual harassment between children in schools and colleges' (2018) provides further detailed advice. Part 5 of KCSIE (2019) is about managing reports of child on child sexual violence and sexual harassment which will inform the School's response to such cases. There is a brief summary also in Annex A.

Upskirting

'Upskirting' typically involves taking a picture under a person's clothing without them knowing, with the intention of viewing their genitals or buttocks to obtain sexual gratification, or cause the victim humiliation, distress or alarm. It is now a criminal offence.

Online Risks and Sexting

The use of technology has become a significant component of many safeguarding issues. Child sexual exploitation; radicalisation; sexual predation: technology often provides the platform that facilitates harm. The breadth of issues classified within online safety is considerable but can be categorised into three areas of risk:

- content: being exposed to illegal, inappropriate or harmful material, for example pornography, fake news, racist or radical and extremist views;
- contact: being subjected to harmful online interaction with other users, for example commercial advertising as well as adults posing as children or young adults; and
- conduct: personal online behaviour that increases the likelihood of, or causes, harm, for example making, sending and receiving explicit images, or online bullying.

As we increasingly work online it is essential that our children are safeguarded from potentially harmful and inappropriate online material. As such, the Governing Body and the Executive Board, along with senior leaders, ensure that appropriate filters and monitoring systems are in place. Pupils are given opportunities to explore their online safety through teaching and learning, as part of providing a broad and balanced curriculum. Particular relevant issues are covered through personal, social, health and economic education (PSHEE) throughout the School.

'Sexting' means the taking and sending or posting of images or videos of a sexual or indecent nature, usually through mobile phone picture messages or webcams over the internet.

The School will treat all incidents of sexting as a safeguarding matter and procedure should be followed as laid out in this Policy.

Members of staff should not view sexual imagery, or copy, print or share the images *under any circumstances*. Staff should however, be prepared to describe the content of images as reported to them.

Ideally the device should be confiscated, turned off and locked away securely until it is required.

External agencies may not always need to be involved but the School will always seek advice as to the deletions of images and action to be taken. If the images have been shared online, the School will consider contacting relevant web hosts/service providers or contacting the Internet Watch Foundation or Childline.

A pupil should be advised to block a sender if they are receiving unwanted images. The UK Council for Child Internet Safety's advice note 'Sexting in schools and colleges: responding to incidents and safeguarding young people' (August 2016) contains details of support agencies and provides further information for schools on how to responding to incidents of sexting.

The College of Policing has also produced a briefing note 'Police action in response to youth produced sexual imagery ("sexting")' (November 2016) which provides information on how police forces treat instances of sexting by young persons.

Appendix 6: Guidance for Staff on Receiving a Disclosure

Although hard to hear, it is a privilege to receive a disclosure from a pupil since it acknowledges that they trust you enough to confide in you.

When receiving a disclosure, 'Good Practice' is as follows:

- <u>Listen</u> be welcoming and allow them to speak without interruption this may be very hard for them;
- Use <u>TED</u> Tell, Explain, Describe ask questions for clarification only;
- <u>Stay Calm & Reassure</u> offer understanding with no judgment "it's not your fault";
- <u>Affirm</u> "it was right for you to tell me", "you have been very brave";
- <u>NEVER</u> promise confidentiality. Rather "I must pass this on to someone who can help";
- <u>Follow up</u> tell them you will support them as much as you can as they have chosen you to trust;
- <u>DO NOT INVESTIGATE;</u>
- <u>Record</u> child's name, date of birth, the child's normal context e.g. behaviour and attitude, the incident(s) which give rise for concern with date(s) and time(s) and a verbatim record of what the child said (be specific), if recording bruising/injuries the position, colour, size, and shape should be indicated on a body map. Say exactly what you see, hear and know about changes in attitudes, performance and behaviour think big picture. Date and sign the record you make;
- <u>Report</u> immediately to DSL or Deputy; and
- <u>Seek</u> support for yourself.

If the DSL is unavailable or you believe the child to be in immediate harm, you must make a referral. This can be done by telephone (recommended) or by reference to the Medway or Kent local Safeguarding Children Partnership websites.

You will need the child's name, date of birth and address. You will also need the parents' phone numbers too (and addresses if different to the child).

Be prepared before you ring and remember that the appropriate local safeguarding service is based on where the child lives (therefore, either Kent or Medway for the vast majority of our pupils).

Appendix 7: procedures for managing concerns (kcsie 2019)



Actions where there are concerns about a child

Appendix 8: Allegations Against staff: procedure

Allegations against staff, including against the DSL, should be reported to the Principal. If they concern the Principal, they should be reported to the Chair of Governors.

It is expected that all staff and Governors involved in the management of allegations of abuse made against a member of staff or volunteer or former member of staff or volunteer will comply at all times with DfE statutory guidance contained within the document: Keeping Children Safe in Education (September 2019). The following guidance is drawn directly from the Part 4, KCSIE (2019).

School staff, because of their daily contact with children in a variety of situations including the wider caring role, are particularly vulnerable to accusations of abuse. Their relationships with pupils may lead to allegations being made against them by pupils or adults with parental responsibilities. In any such case, these procedures need to be applied with common sense and judgement; a quick response and resolution is a priority.

The School's procedures

The School's procedures for dealing with allegations made against staff or volunteers will be used where the member of staff or volunteer is alleged to have:

- behaved in a way that has harmed a child, or may have harmed a child;
- possibly committed a criminal offence against or related to a child; or
- behaved towards a child or children in a way that indicates he or she would pose a risk of harm if they work regularly or closely with children.

Any allegations not meeting this criteria will be dealt with in accordance with local authority Social Care procedures and advice from the LADO will always be sought.

This procedure relates to members of staff who are currently working in the School regardless of whether the School is where the abuse is alleged to have taken place. Allegations against former members of staff or volunteers who are no longer working at the School will be referred to the Police.

If an allegation is made against a member of staff, the School's priority will be to achieve a quick resolution of that allegation in a fair and consistent way that provides effective protection for any child involved and at the same time supports the person who is the subject of the allegation. All such allegations must be dealt with as a priority without delay.

The following definitions are to be used when determining the outcome of allegation investigations:

- **Substantiated**: there is sufficient evidence to prove the allegation
- **Malicious**: there is sufficient evidence to disprove the allegation and there has been a deliberate act to deceive
- **False**: there is sufficient evidence to disprove the allegation

- **Unsubstantiated**: there is insufficient evidence to prove or disprove the allegation. The term, therefore, does not imply guilt or innocence
- **Unfounded**: to reflect cases where there is no evidence or proper basis which supports the allegation being made.

The procedures to be followed in all such cases are outlined in Part 4 of KCSIE p50-61 <u>here</u>.

Reporting an allegation against staff or volunteers

All allegations, complaints, concerns or suspicions against staff or volunteers, should be reported to the Principal.

All allegations about the Principal should be reported to the Chairman of Governors without the Principal being informed.

All allegations, complaints, concerns or suspicions about the Chairman of Governors should be reported to the LADO without the Chairman of Governors being informed. The LADO may choose to appoint a 'case manager'.

The Principal will inform the LADO based on the established statutory criteria for such a referral. The Principal will also decide whether to inform the DSL, or, if the DSL is the subject of the allegation, the DDSLs. The LADO will be informed within one working day of all allegations that come to the School's attention and appear to meet the criteria and the LADO may consult the Police and Children's Services as appropriate.

No investigation will be undertaken into allegations without prior consultation with the LADO so as not to jeopardise statutory investigations. Borderline cases will be discussed informally with the LADO, as stated above, without naming the school or individual until the LADO has advised whether a referral is required. Any allegations not meeting the criteria will be dealt with in accordance with Local Safeguarding Children Board's procedures and the School's Disciplinary Procedures. All such cases will be handled within the School without delay.

All discussions with the LADO will be recorded in writing.

In a strategy discussion or the initial evaluation of the case, the Principal should share all relevant information they have about the person who is the subject of the allegation, and about the alleged victim(s).

The initial sharing of information and evaluation by the appropriate agencies may lead to a decision that no further action is to be taken in regard to the individual facing the allegation or concern; in which case this decision and a justification for it should be recorded by both the Principal and the LADO, and agreement reached on what information should be put in writing to the individual concerned and by whom. The Principal should then consider, with the LADO, what action should follow both in respect of the individual and those who made the initial allegation.

Disclosure of information

The Principal will inform the accused person as soon as possible after consulting the LADO and will provide as much information as possible at that time.

The Parents or carers of the child[ren] involved will be informed of the allegation as soon as possible if they do not already know of it. They will also be kept informed of the progress of the case and the outcome where there is not a criminal prosecution, including the outcome of any disciplinary process. The deliberations of a disciplinary hearing, and the information taken into account in reaching a decision, cannot normally be disclosed, but the parents or carers of the child may be told the outcome in confidence.

Where the LADO advises that a strategy discussion is needed, or Police or Local Children's Services need to be involved, the Principal will not speak to the accused person or the parents or carers until those agencies have consulted and have agreed what information can be disclosed.

The reporting restrictions preventing the identification of a teacher who is the subject of such an allegation in certain circumstances will be observed and, where necessary, parents and carers will be made aware of the prohibition on reporting or publishing allegations about teachers. If parents or carers express a wish to apply to the court to have reporting restrictions removed, they will be told to seek legal advice.

The Principal should take advice from the LADO, Police and local Children's Services to agree the following:

- who needs to know and, importantly, exactly what information can be shared;
- how to manage speculation, leaks and gossip;
- what, if any information can be reasonably given to the wider community to reduce speculation; and
- how to manage press interest if and when it should arise.

Where the Police are involved, wherever possible the Principal will ask the Police to obtain consent from the individuals involved to share their statements and evidence for use in the employer disciplinary process. This should be done as their investigation proceeds and will enable the Police to share relevant information without delay at the conclusion of their investigation or any court case.

Action to be taken against the accused

The School has a duty of care towards its employees and as such, it must ensure that effective support is provided for anyone facing an allegation. Individuals will be informed of concerns or allegations as soon as possible and given an explanation of the likely course of action, unless external agencies object to this. The individual concerned will be advised to contact their trade union representative, if they have one, or a colleague for support. He/she will also be given access to welfare counselling and medical advice, if appropriate.

The Principal will appoint a named representative to keep the member of staff informed of the progress of the case and to consider what other support might be appropriate. If the member of staff is suspended he/she will also be kept up to date with current work-related issues.

Where an investigation by the Police or Local Authority is unnecessary, the LADO will discuss the steps to be taken with the Principal. The appropriate action will depend on the nature and circumstances of the allegation and will range from taking no further action to dismissal or a decision not to use the person's services in the future.

It may be necessary to undertake a further enquiries to determine the appropriate action. If so, the LADO will discuss with the Principal how and by whom the investigation will be undertaken.

Suspension

Suspension will not be an automatic response to an allegation and will only be considered in a case where:

- there is cause to suspect a child or other children at the School is or are at risk of significant harm; or
- the allegation is so serious that it might be grounds for dismissal.

All options to suspension will be considered before taking that step. Consideration will be given to whether the result that would be achieved by suspension could be obtained by alternative arrangements, for example, redeployment either within or outside of the School or providing an assistant when the individual has contact with children. The School will give due weight to the views of the LADO when making a decision about suspension.

A member of staff will only be suspended if there is no reasonable alternative. If suspension is deemed appropriate, the reasons and justification will be recorded and the member of staff notified of those reasons in writing within one working day. Appropriate support will be provided for the suspended individual and contact details provided. Social contact with colleagues and friends should not be prevented unless there is evidence to suggest that such contact is likely to be prejudicial to the gathering and presentation of evidence.

Criminal proceedings

The School will consult with the LADO following the conclusion of a criminal investigation or prosecution as to whether any further action, including disciplinary action, is appropriate and if so, how to proceed. The options will depend on the circumstances of the case, including the result of the police investigation or trial and the standards of proof applicable.

Return to work

If it is decided that the person who has been suspended should return to work, the School will consider how best to facilitate this, for example, arranging a phased return and / or the provision of a mentor to provide assistance and support in the short term. The School will also consider how to manage the contact with the child[ren] who made the allegation.

DBS and TRA Referrals and Ceasing to employ staff

There is a legal requirement on the school as an employer to make a referral to the DBS where they think that an individual has engaged in conduct that harmed (or is likely to harm) a child; or if a person otherwise poses a risk of harm to a child.

If the School ceases to use the services of a member of staff or volunteer because they are unsuitable to work with children, a settlement/compromise agreement will not be used and a referral to the Disclosure and Barring Service will be made as soon as possible if the criteria are met – see above – as per the guidance published by the DBS.

If the accused person resigns or ceases to provide his / her services, this will not prevent child protection allegations being followed up in accordance with this policy and the statutory guidance. A referral to the Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) will be made as soon as possible, if the criteria are met – see above – as per the guidance published by the DBS.

Staff should be aware that the DBS has statutory authority to bar a person from working in regulated activity with children and/or vulnerable adults in the UK.

Guidance for making referrals can be found on the DBS website <u>http://www.homeoffice.gov.uk/agencies-public-bodies/dbs/</u>. Failure to report to the DBS constitutes an offence and the School may be removed from the DFE register of independent schools.

Where a teacher is dismissed (or would have been dismissed had he/she not resigned) for misconduct, separate consideration will be given as to whether a referral to The Teaching Regulation Agency (TRA) should be made, as per the flow chart that appears in the guidance published by the TRA. If in doubt, a referral will be made.

Any such incidents will be followed by a review of the safeguarding procedures within the School, with a report being presented to the Governors without delay.

Charity Commission report

Safeguarding issues may also be reportable to the Charity Commission under their serious incident reporting guidance, that is, if any one or more of the following things occur:

- there has been an incident where the pupils (beneficiaries) of the School have been or are being abused or mistreated while under the care of someone connected with the School such as a trustee, member of staff or volunteer;
- there has been an incident where someone has been abused or mistreated and this is connected with the activities of the School;
- allegations have been made that such an incident may have happened, regardless of when the alleged abuse or mistreatment took place;
- the School has grounds to suspect that such an incident may have occurred; or
- it is the responsibility of the Governing Body to make this report and notify the School's insurers as appropriate.

Timescales

All allegations must be dealt with as a priority so as to avoid any delay. Where it is clear immediately that the allegation is unsubstantiated or malicious, the case should be resolved within one week. It is expected that most cases of allegations of abuse against staff will be resolved within one month with exceptional cases being completed within 12 months. If the nature of the allegation does not require formal disciplinary action, the Principal should institute appropriate action within three working days. If a disciplinary hearing is required and can be held without further investigation, as far as possible it should be held within 15 working days.

Unsubstantiated, false or malicious allegations

Where an allegation by a pupil is shown to have been deliberately invented or malicious, the Principal will consider whether to take disciplinary action in accordance with the School's Discipline policies and the Expulsion, Removal and Review Policy.

The School may apply appropriate sanctions to pupils who are found to have made malicious allegations. This could include temporary or permanent exclusions or referral to the Police if a criminal offence may have been committed.

Where a parent has made a deliberately invented or malicious allegation the Principal will consider whether to require that parent to withdraw their child or children from the school on the basis that they have treated the School or a member of staff unreasonably.

Whether or not the person making the allegation is a pupil or a parent (or other member of the public), the School reserves the right to contact the Police to determine whether any action might be appropriate.

Record keeping and references

Details of all allegations found to be malicious will be removed from personnel records.

A clear and comprehensive summary of any allegations made against a member of staff, and all details leading to and including a resolution, and a note of any actions taken and decisions reached will be kept on the confidential personnel file and will be retained until the accused has reached normal retirement age or for a period of 10 years if that is longer.

However, where an issue or concern relating to a member of staff and the safeguarding of children has been identified, records of any concerns, suspicions or investigations will be kept for 75 years. Such records will provide clarification in cases where future DBS checks reveal information from the Police about an allegation that did not result in a criminal conviction and will help to prevent unnecessary re-investigation if, as sometimes happens, an allegation re-surfaces after a period of time. The School will provide information regarding a substantiated allegation for the purposes of future references and DBS disclosures in accordance with the School's safer recruitment procedures. In cases where allegations are found to be malicious or unsubstantiated, reference will not be made in employer references.

Review and Learning Lessons

At the conclusion of a case in which an allegation is substantiated, the LADO should review the circumstances of the case with the Principal to determine whether there are any improvements to be made to the School's procedures or practice to help prevent similar events in the future. This should include issues arising from the decision to suspend the member of staff, the duration of the suspension and whether or not suspension was justified.

Lessons should also be learnt from the use of suspension when the individual is subsequently reinstated. The LADO and Principal should consider how future investigations of a similar nature could be carried out without suspending the individual.

Appendix 9: APPROVED FORMS FOR REPORTING AN INCIDENT/ DISCLOSURE



Record of Concern

Name of child: ______ date of birth:_____

Name and position of person completing the form (please print):_____

Date and time of incident:	
Incident:	
Name of witnesses and any other information:	
Signature	Date (ddmmyy) and time form completed: